UNITED NATIONS

General @)} Assembly " it meeting

held on
FORTY-SIXTH SESSION Tuesday, 26 November 1991
. at 3 p.m.
Official Records New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 42nd MEETING
Chairman: Mr. MUNTASSER (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya)

Chairman of the Advisor mmi n Administrati n
Budgetar ions: Mr. MSELLE
CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 114: SCALE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE APPORTIONMENT OF THE EXPENSES
OF THE UNITED NATIONS (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 116: UNITED NATIONS COMMON SYSTEM (continued)
AGENDA ITEM 117: UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEM (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 107: PROFPJSED PROGRAMME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUM 1992-19903
(continued)

First reading (continued)

Section 23. Economic Commission for Africa {continued)

This record as subject to correction

Correctio » should be sent under the signature of o member of the delegation concerned Distr. GENERAL
within one ek of the date of publication w the Chael of the Otficial Records Ediing Section. Room DC2 750,
2 Vmted Natons Plaza, and incorporated 1in a copy of the record A/C . 5/4 6 ISR .4 2

4 December 1991

Corrections wilt be issued atier the ond of the session g separate cotrgendum for cach Commitiee

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

91-57671 5424S (E)
/lll



A/C,5/46/SR.42
English
Page 2

The meeting waa called to order at 3,20 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 114t SCALE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE APPORTIONMENT OF THE EXPENSES
OF THE UNITED NATIONS (gontinued) (A/46/11 and Add.l and Add,2/Rev.l)

1. Mr, ZARIF (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that developments in the world
community, including structural adjustment and new international and regional
political issues directly affecting the economic situatioan of many countries,
must be considered when reviewing the scale of assessments and the methodology
for its calculation. Real capacity to pay was the fundamental criterion for
determining the scale of assessments., However, while national income served
as the basis of the current methodology, other factors that were also
important to a more precise determination of a country's capacity to pay
should not be neglected. 1I'is delegation fully supported the continued
application of the scheme of limits, which could reduce excessive fluctuations
in the rates of assessment of Member States. With regard to the statistical
base pariod, his delegation could not concur with the observations of the
Committee on Contributions. Structural adjustments in some national economies
required a shorter, three-year Lase period.

i Of the various factors not considered but which were very important to
the economies of Member States and which might have an adverse impact on their
gross national product, one crucial issue was the effective rate of exchange,
which should be the basis of calculation. The Islamic Republic of Iran had
announced three major exchange rates - an official rate of exchange, a
competitive rate of exchange and a free, or parallel, market rate of

exchange - which had been verbally confirmed by the International Monetary
Fund; but only the official rate of exchange (the 1981 rate calculated by IMF)
had been used as the conversion factor in computing the national income. That
rate could not truly indicate his country's capacity to pay unless other rates
were taken into account. His delegation was surprised that the Committee on
Contributions could accept the exchange rates provided by some Member States
and reject those from otheis.

3. Furthermore, many developing countries were exporting the natural and
non-renewable resources which constituted their wealth. Only the part of
those resources which produced income through productive investment should be
considered as national income. For that reason, the national income of
rawv-materials-exporting countries should be adjusted on the basis of their
income consumption behaviour. Since the exploitation of natural resources had
destructive effects on the environment, an adequate means of evaluating those

effects and their future costs in developing countries must be included in the
methodology.

4. The current methodology also 4id not consider man-made and natural
disasters affecting the national wealth of Member States. Ad hoc adjustments
in the machine scale did not overcome that defect. His delegation believed
that such impacts on a national economy should be a main and separate
criterion in the methodoloyy, rather than part of the mitigation process.




A/C.5/46/8R.42
English
Page 3

(Mr, Zarif, Islamic Republic of Iran)

5. The Islamic Republic of Iran was currently in special circumstances,
caused first of all by the tremendous damage of eight years of an imposed

war. In that connection, he referred the members of the Committee to the
report of the team of experts which had carried out an exploratory mission in
the Islamic Republic of Iran in pursuance of paragraph 7 of Security Council
resolution 598 (1987). The report (S/22863) documented the heavy cost of the
war to the country in human and material terms and noted in particular that
the damage to its infrastructure was so extensive that it would take several
years to bring services and production to the levels that had prevailed at the
outbreak of the war (para. 24). The Iranian Government's c¢stimation of losses
was about $1,000 billion. Given the constant increase in his country's rate
of assessment, it was doubtful whether the Committee on Contributions had ever
considered those realities.

6. The situation had been further exacerbated as a result of the enormous
flow of Afghan and Iraqi refugees into the Islamic Republic of Iran, which had
thus become the primary host country for almost 4.2 million refugees.
Estimating that the daily expenses for each refugee were about $10, the
financial burden represented some $15.2 billion a year. During the recent
influx of Iraqi refugees, his country had spent about $2.7 billion in

six months. Compared with that tremendous burden, the volume of international
assistance had been too small and, according to some reports, amounted to only
one tenth of that received by other neighbouring countries.

7. Moreover, natural disasters such as earthquakes and flcods had caused
extensive damage. A massive earthquake on 21 June 1990 had destroyed 4 towns
and 375 villages and had claimed hundreds of thousands of lives. According to
a recent report by the World Bank, the earthquake damage to the aconomy was
estimated at about 2.5 per cent of the gross domestic product,

8. Regrettably, none of those pressures on his country's economy had been
taken into account by the Committee on Contributions. The current methodology
for calculating the scale of assesaments was unfair and inadequate since it
did not consider all relevant factors. His delegation called for changes in
the methodology and could not accept the recommended scale. It would continue
to negotiate that issue in informal consultations.

9, Mr, ALI (Chairman of the Committee on Contributions), responding to
questions raised in the discussion of agenda item 114, said that the Committee
on Contributions took its responsibilities very seriously and tried hard to
live up to the expectations vested in it. Although the results of its work
had been challenged often, it treated those challengas both as a fact of life
and as an encouragement to try to solve as many of the issues as possible. It
had made every effort to follow the General Assembly's instructions in
preparing the new scale of assessments, including the request for greater
transparency.




A/C,5/46/8R.42
English
Page 4

(Mr, ALL)

10. He had taken due note of the criticiam expressed by some delegations with
regard to the ad hoc adjustment process. In response to requests for an
explanation of t.e process beyond that contained in the Committee's report, he
wished to point uut that, notwithstanding the specific criteria adopted by the
General Assembly to serve as a guide, the complex adjustment process probably
could never be free of all ambiguity. 1In fact, the criteria themselves were
somewhat ambiguous and open-ended. The Committee had made its decisions in
the context of rather dramatic historical events and with a single donor
willing to provide about two thirds of the points available for the latest
mitigation process. The Committee had attempted to distribute the available
points as judiciously as possible but had not arrived at its recommendations
easily. Some of its members had expressed serious reservations about the
volume of points involved end the justification for their allocation. He none
the less cautioned against the categorical abolition of ad hoc adjustments as
it was doubtful that the methodology could ever be modified in such a manner
as to produce acceptable results for all Member States at all times. He did
not himself like the process but some modification of the machine scale,
however limited, might always be required in the effort to best approximate
States' capacity to pay.

11. The quantification of capacity to pay was, of course, the basic mission
of the Committee on Contributions and it was a task in which the subjective
perception of individual Member States was confronted with an imperfect
methodological tool and the inherent need to account for individual
circumstances. Despite the long-standing and valid calls for the refinement
of the methodology, it had to be recognized that no set of universally
available and comparable data could be expected to capture all qualitatively
significant aspects which, ideally, should be considered. Regarding the need
to explore other indicators, it would be recalled that the Committee on
Contributions had devoted many of its sessions in the early 1980s to
elaborating a variety of piroposals; all of them had revealed conceptual flaws
or data problems, and none had been acceptable to the General Assembly.

12, The use of realistic exchange rates was an aspect of the methodology
which was improving gradually as more and more Member States became members of
the International Monetary Fund and had freely convertible currencies. The
day when price-adjusted rates of exchange (PARE) could be applied universally
was not far off, given recent events and the declared intentions of some
Member States, but until then it would still be necessary to resort to
multiple solutions.

13. With regard to the scheme of limits, he could only reiterate that a
number of alternatives had been carefully considered by the Committee but none
of them eliminated distortion or had the desired effect of only increasing the
rates of assessment of developed countries and decreasing those of developing
countries. The effects of the various alternatives were shown in annex VI of
the Committee's report (A/46/11).




A/C.5/46/8R.42
English
Page 5

(Mr._All)

14. As ln the past, reactions to the proposed scale of assessments ranged
from enthusiastic support to outright rejection. However, he was sure that a
balance between those two extremes would emerge from the informal

consultations, as would instructions for the future work of the Committee on
Contributiorns.

15. Mr, WORONIECKI (Poland) paid a tribute to the Chairman of the Committee
on Contributions for the exceptional diplomatic skills, perseverance and
profound commitment he had displayed while serving for over 25 years in that
capacity. He requested the Acting Under-Secretary-General for Administration
and Management to suggest a suitable manner in which to commemorate his
invaluable services at Healdquarters,

16. The CHAIRMAN endorsed the views expressed by the representative of Poland.

AGENDA ITEM 116: UNITED NATIONS COMMON SYSTEM (gontinued) (A/46/30,
A/46/275; A/C.5/46/28, A/C.5/46/31, A/C.5/46/33, A/C.5/46/3%5 and A/C.5/46/45)

AGENDA ITEM 117: UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEM (gcontinued) (A/46/9 and
A/46/614; A/C.5/46/15, A/C.5/46/31, A/C.5/46/33 and A/C.5/46/45)

17. Mr., AITKEN (Chairman of the United Nations Joint Staff Fension Board)
said that he was grateful for the general appreciation expresced for the
efforts of the United Nations Joint Staff Pension Board to reach conclusions
and recommendations on the difficult issues before it on the basis of
consensus. The Board's recommendation on a modification of the pension
adjustment system reflected the results of a detailed and often contentious
debate during the past two years among its three constituent groups and within
each group. The Board had always been mindful of the concerns of Member
States regarding the cost of any modification and at the same time had
recognized the need to safirgquard the financial health of the Fund and to
respond to the problems caused by the declining value of pensions in certain
countries resulting from currency fluctuations. The Board had clearly
recognized the need to monitor closely the future costs of its proposal, if
adopted. In deciding against recommending an increase in the rate of
contribution at the current stage, it had recognized the concerns of Member
States regarding costs, which had been reinforced by the observations of ACABQ
in paragraph 22 of its report (A/46/614) and by the support expressed by
several delegations, to the effect that the Board should consider "fine
tuning" the modificaticn if that became necessary to limit its cost. As to
the specific suggestion that changes should be made in the "120 per cent cap"
provision, he noted that the consensus reached by the Board had included an
agreement to study possible changes in the provision and to study the
operation of the special index for pensioners and the applicability of the
proposed modification to General Service staff. With those considerations in
mind, he hoped that approval of the Board's consensus proposal would be
reflected in the resolution which the Committee would recommend for adoption
by the General Assembly.




A/C.5746/S8R.42
English
Page 6

{Mr, Aitken)

18. He welcomed the support expressed for the step-by-step approach agreed
upon by the International Civil Service Commission (ICSC) and the Board
concerning the comprehensive review of the pensionable remuneration and
pensions of General Service staff. In view of the wide differences of views
on the current methodology and on the various alternatives examined by the two
bodies, thorough consideration must be given to all alternatives before any
definitive action could be taken, bearing in mind the need to analyse not only
the technical aspects of any recommended methodology but also its impact on
the unity and coherence of the international civil service. The views
expressed in the Committee, the decision it would take in its resolution on
the subject and the analysis of the results of the various studies would form

the basis for the formulation in ICSC and the Board of a reasonable and just
solution.

19. As to the pensionable remuneration of ungraded officials, the Board
intended to make definitive recommendations on any necessary amendments to the
Fund's Regulations as soon as tho key issues relating to the methodology for
determining that remuneration had been resolved. The Board was awaiting the
reaction of the General Assembly and other governing bodies to the methodology
recommended by the Commission before suggesting changes to the Fund's
Regulations. Once the General Assembly had adopted a position on the issue,
presumably at its current session, that decision would serve as a basis for
future consideration of the matter, since the Assembly alone had the
responsibility to effect changes in the Regulations.

20. He had been asked to explain the reasons behind the tacit recognition by
the Board of the longevity/merit steps introduced by the International Labour
Organisation (ILO) and the World Health Organization (WHO). ICSC had
recommended that the additional salary steps, which had been considered as
pensioanable since their introduction many years earlier, should be replaced by
one-time non-pensionable cash awards to reward merit. The Board's conclusion
had not involved justification of the existence of such additional steps, but
rather, continuation of the long-standing tacit recognition of the
pensionability of the additional salary amounts, pending the responses of the
two organizations to the Commission's recommendations and to the request of
the General Assembly that they take the necessary measures to bring their
salary scales into line with those of the other organizations of the common
system. Since pensions were determined on the basis of salaries, the Board
had felt that it should await action on salaries before pursuing any changes
in the definitior of pensionable remuneration in the Fund's Requlations.

21. The Fifth Committee and the General Assembly had consistently underscored
the need to maintain the unity, coherence and integrity of the United Nations

joint staff pension system. That in turn required the careful weighing of the
interests of all partiec concerned in arriving at decisions on pension issues.

22. On behalf of the Acting Under-Secretary-General for Administration and

Management, he expressed appreciation for the positive comments by delegations
regarding the performance of the Fund and the management of its investments.

leas



A/C.5/46/8R.42
English
Page 7

AGENDA ITEM 107: PROPOSED PROGRAMME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUM 1992-19903
(gontinued) (A/746/6/Rev.1 and A/46/7)

First reading (continued)
Section 23. Economic Commission for Africa (continued)

Trauslation and interpretation sexvices in the Ecopomic Commimslon for Africa
(continued) (A/46/7/Ad4.1)

23. 1he CHAIRMAN suggested that, on the basis of the note by the
Secretary-General on the review of translation and inferpretation services for
all official languages in the Economic Commission for Africa (A/C.5/46/19) and
the recommendations of ACABQ relating thereto (A/46/7/Ad4.1), the Committee
should approve the Secretary-General's proposals as endorsed by ACABQ. He
also suggested that the Committee should recommend that the General Assembly
should request the Secretary-General to submit a report on the subject at its
forty-seventh session, taking into account the comments of ACABQ on the
question of interpretation services, as well us the views of delegations.

24, It was so dacided.




